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Introduction 
 
The Crown Commercial Service (CCS) agreement for  Smart Energy Cities (RM6108) is due             
to go live in late 2019. In order to continue to deliver these services for our public sector                  
customers, we are looking to engage with the market. The aim of these activities is to better                 
understand the current market landscape and identify areas for development and innovation            
in the new agreements. 
 
The Prior Information Notice was issued on 25th September 2018 and can be found below. 
 

● Smart Energy Cities PIN 
 
We previously conducted our first market engagement activities, a Supplier Bootcamp, to            
provide an overview to all Suppliers on the operations of CCS and help them understand               
what we are looking to achieve through this project. These sessions were face to face in                
London on Thursday 1st November 2018 and again via webinar on Friday 2nd November              
2018. The slides and our answers to the questions we received are available from the               
agreement page linked above.  
 
We are now looking to conduct a Request for Information Exercise (RFI) to gather more               
information on the market to inform our strategy and help shape our requirements. This will               
form the basis of our subsequent workshop engagement meetings in the new year.  
 
The deadline for the return of this document is  Wednesday 23rd January 2019 . Any RFIs               
received after this date are not guaranteed to be reviewed and offered the opportunity to               
engage with CCS in category workshops or 1-2-1’s.  
 
Subject to any disclosure obligation required by law (including, for the avoidance of             
doubt, the Freedom of Information Act 2000), Crown Commercial Service shall treat            
the answers you give to the following questions as confidential and will not disclose              
the same to any third party. The purpose of this Request For Information (RFI) is to                
allow Crown Commercial Service to gauge the thoughts of its potential suppliers in             
the approach to the creation of new commercial agreements. Crown Commercial           
Service will review and consider all comments you make within this RFI, but cannot              
guarantee that they will be incorporated into the final agreements or processes. 
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Introduction to Crown Commercial Service 
 

The Crown Commercial Service (CCS) brings together policy, advice and direct 
buying; providing commercial services to the public sector and saving money 

for the taxpayer. 
 

We’ve brought policy, advice and direct buying together in a single organisation to: 
● make savings for customers in both central government and the wider public            

sector; 
● achieve maximum value from every commercial relationship; and 
● improve the quality of service delivery for common goods and services across            

government. 

We are an executive agency of the Cabinet Office operating as a trading fund under               
Government Trading Funds Act 1973 . We have offices located across the country in             
Liverpool, Norwich, Newport, Leeds and London. 

We work with over 17,000 customer organisations in the public sector and our services are               
provided by more than 5,000 suppliers. 

We’re responsible for: 
● managing the procurement of common goods and services, so public sector           

organisations with similar needs achieve value by buying as a single customer; 
● increasing savings for the taxpayer by centralising buying requirements for          

common goods and services and bringing together smaller projects; and 
● leading on procurement policy on behalf of the UK government. 

Our Goals 
 
For 2016/17, our priorities were to: 

● Grow our wider public sector business to help more customers to achieve value             
for money, with a target of delivering savings of between £200m and £250m             
across the wider public sector. 

● Help save government departments even more money, with an overall target of            
between £240m and £330m. Implement our digital transformation programme,         
which will help to improve our service delivery and support the launch of the              
Crown Marketplace. 

● Continue to lead on the Government’s commercial policy and a range of other             
initiatives, including the delivery of three manifesto commitments relating to          
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government spend with SMEs, signing strategic suppliers up to Prompt Payment           
Code, and supporting the delivery of apprenticeships in the UK. 

● Further strengthen our capability, including continuing our operational review and          
implementing a new wider learning and development offer and a programme to            
upskill strategic category teams as part of the knowledge transfer component of            
the Commercial Accelerator Programme. 

Further information on Crown Commercial Service can be found on our  website .  
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Introduction to the Utilities and Fuels Team 
 
The Utilities and Fuels team has over 20 years of dedicated experience in providing Utilities 
Services to the UK public sector. 

 
As the UK’s largest independent energy (gas and electricity) buyers outside of the big              
6 energy companies, CCS holds a unique position within the marketplace. This allows             
us to aggregate volumes to achieve sustainable savings, develop innovative solutions           
and provide our customers with a value added managed service. 

 
During the 2017/18 financial year, our Utilities and Fuels team secured the procurement,             
trading and delivery of almost £2 billion of products across our extensive commercial             
agreements. This allowed us to achieve an outstanding saving for the public purse of £169               
million (~8%). Savings were driven primarily from our flagship commercial agreements; Half            
Hourly (HH) and Non-Half Hourly (NHH) Power, Gas and National Fuels. 
 
Smart Energy cities’ framework is situated within the Buildings Pillar. The CCS has             
specialists working on Category Strategy, focused on new market developments and           
procurement opportunities, as well as Procurement Operations, focused on delivering these           
offerings to our customers and ensuring continued improvements and continuity of delivery            
from existing agreements.  These three teams will all report to the Buildings Director.  
Across all of our frameworks, we provide utilities and fuels services to 1100 customers              
spanning the breadth of the public sector ranging from large central government            
departments, hospitals to small schools. 
 
We continue to deliver a wide range of benefits for customers including: 
 

● Focus on increased sustainability, operational efficiency and demand management         
initiatives; 

● Constant innovation to drive value and help manage usage; 
● Focus on cashable savings driven both by the benefits of aggregation and trading             

effectiveness, and also by operational and framework improvements; 
● Highly competitive supplier margins and dedicated customer service teams; 
● Professional in-house energy trading team supported by a full suite of market            

intelligence tools, subscriptions and live broker screens meaning the CCS has a            
unique overview of the energy market; 

● Continued development of new products and initiatives across Utilities and Fuels,           
including Utilities Management Software, Metering and Ancillary Services to         
deliver a suite of services around a best in class automatic monitoring and             
targeting (AM&T) solution, and liquefied petroleum gas and solid fuels including           
biomass, lubricants and greases, metering and telemetry and fuels ancillary          
services; 

● A transparent fee structure with no hidden charges; 
● An independent risk team; an external governance board with representation from           

across our customer base; and an independent market expert; 
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● Rigorous procurement processes which are fully EU compliant, which save you           
time and money on tendering, and ensure you and your organisation are not open              
to the risk of breaching procurement regulations; 

● Formal supplier performance management process that takes into account         
customer feedback; 

● Dedicated online customer service portal; and 
● An extensive range of communications providing budgetary and market insight. 
● Energy Experts with years of market experience, dedicated to provision of a            

sustainable UK.  
 
We have a range of products available across a number of categories including: Energy              
Supply, Water and Wastewater, Fuels and Demand Management.  
 
Our current offerings for customers include: 
 

Ref Title 

RM1075 Electricity Supply and Ancillary Services (HH) 

RM1076 Supply of Natural Gas (DM & NDM) and Ancillary Services 

RM3791 Supply of Electricity and Ancillary Services (NHH) 

RM3790 Water, Wastewater and Ancillary Services 

RM3801 National Fuels 

RM3792 Demand Side Response 

RM3768 National Energy Performance Contract (RE:FIT) 

RM3800 Utilities Management Software, Metering and Ancillary Services 

RM3824 Heat Networks and Electricity Generating Assets 

 
We also have a range of new products in our pipeline for the procurement over the coming 
12 months including: 
 

Ref Title 

RM6011 Supply of Energy and Ancillary Services 

RM3809 Utilities Switching Services (DPS) 

RM6108 Smart Energy Cities  
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RFI Instructions 
In order to assist us in gathering information on the market and understanding your              
capabilities, we would like you to answer the below questions in the attached Questionnaire              
spreadsheet.  
 
If we feel that we would benefit from further engagement with you on any of the solutions                 
discussed in this RFI we may invite you to follow up 1-2-1 meetings or category workshops.                
This document will be used as the basis for any future conversation meaning we can get                
best value from the sessions. 
 
One to one sessions and category workshops are scheduled for the following dates and              
locations. If the demand exceeds the scheduled times we may look to arrange additional              
sessions in the following weeks. 
 
London: 

● Monday 4th February 2019  
● Tuesday 5th February 2019 
● Wednesday 6th February 2019 
● Monday 11th February 2019  
● Thursday 14th February 2019  

 
Please complete all the information included in ‘Section 1 - General Requirements’ and then              
answer the following applicable sections in Section 2 - Smart Solutions: 

Service 1 - Electric Vehicle Charging Points  
Service 2 - Smart Lighting  
Service 3 - Smart Meters, Sensoring and Equipment  
Service 4 - Demand Side Response  
Service 5 -  Building Management Systems / Building Energy Management Systems 
Service 6 - Heating and Cooling 
Service 7 - Central control systems/Integrator 
Service 8 - Other Utilities - Gas, Water & Fuels 
 
Please fill out the RFI depending on any of the areas that your organisation is interested in.                 
For example a Electric Vehicle Charging Point Supplier would only be required to complete              
Sections 1 and Service 1 of Section 2. 
 
Once you have completed the relevant sections, please can you return to            
smart-energy-cities@crowncommerical.gov.uk Following our receipt of this document we        
will then select suitable organisations for 1-2-1 meetings and category workshops.  
 
The deadline for the return of this document is  Wednesday 23rd January 2019. Any RFI’s               
received after this date are not guaranteed to be reviewed and offered the opportunity to               
engage with CCS on a one to one basis.  
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Section 1 - General Requirements 
Please answer all questions on the attached Excel sheet to assist us in collating the answers 
for all participants. 
 

1. What is the registered name of your organisation? 

2. Where is your Head Office located? 

3. Is your organisation classified as an Small or Medium Enterprise (SME)?           
Further guidance on the definition of an SME can be found on the EU portal:               
http://ec.europa.eu/growth/smes/business-friendly-environment/sme-definition_en 

4. Please can you provide a brief overview of your I&C (non-domestic) business            
operations including objectives, commercial strategy and business model.  

5. Please indicate with an ‘X’ the Service(s) in which you are currently interested             
in*: 

Service 1 – Electric Vehicle Charging Points [   ] 
Service 2 – Smart Lighting [   ] 
Service 3 – Smart Meters, Sensoring and Equipment [   ] 
Service 4 – Demand Side Response [   ] 
Service 5 – Building Energy Management Systems [   ] 
Service 6 – Heating & Cooling [   ] 
Service 7 – Central control systems/Integrator [   ] 
Service 8 – Other Utilities - Gas, Water & Fuels [   ] 
*Please note, this information will not be used for any other purpose than facilitating              
conversation 
 

6. Are there other energy-related elements you believe we should be including           
within the scope of Smart Energy Cities? 

7. How do you think the Smart Energy Cities framework should be approached:            
as a standard call-off framework, with appointed suppliers able to provide           
specific services, or as a Dynamic Purchasing System which allows more           
flexibility for customers at the expense of greater technical complexity? Can           
you explain your reasoning? 

8. Should there be consultancy services attached to the Smart Energy Cities           
Framework designed to assist customers in the ‘Smart’ decision making          
process? Would your organisation be able to facilitate these services?  

9. What do you feel would be the biggest barriers in preventing you from bidding              
on the agreement(s) with CCS? Please can you provide any suggestions as to             
how we could reduce these barriers? 
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10.What do you think would be the biggest benefits of a Smart Energy Cities              
framework? What do we need to include to maximise the benefit to our             
customers? 

11. How should sources of local energy generation be considered as part of the             
Smart Energy Cities framework? Does this need to be considered as a            
separate service or should it be considered as another control point within a             
DSR/BEMS/Integrator service? 

12.What considerations do you believe need to be given to data security as part              
of the Smart Energy Cities Framework? 

13.What do you believe would be the optimal ownership/management structure          
for a Smart Energy system? Should the system be owned and operated by             
the customer or would it be better to be run by a third party? 

14.What non-energy aspects need to be considered as part of the Smart Energy             
Cities Framework? Are any of these integral to the functioning of Framework            
or could they be considered as part of a wider ‘Smart City/Smart Building’             
approach? 
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Section 2 - Smart Solutions 
Service 1 - Electricity Vehicle Charging Points  

 
1. Do you agree that Electric Vehicle Charging Points should form a part of any              

Smart Energy Cities framework? 

2. What different types of EV points does your organisation supply? How popular            
are each of the different types? Do you have a lesser known solution we              
should make sure we are aware of?  

3. What standards will be required to ensure that EV points installed in the public              
sector estate are ‘Smart’? How do these differ from the current ‘dumb’ EV             
charging points? 

4. What standards will be required to ensure that EV points installed in the public              
sector estate offer interoperability between suppliers of charging infrastructure         
and electric vehicles? 

5. What should be considered to avoid ‘stranded assets’ as future requirements           
for EV charging points change? 

6. Do you believe the SEC should include the possibility for Vehicle-to-Grid           
charging in the future? What are the timescales your organisation expects in            
order for this to become a commercially viable proposition? 

7. Are there any other aspects of EV charging points we should be considering? 

Service 2 - Smart Lighting 
1. Do you agree that Smart Lighting solutions should form part of any Smart             

Energy Cities Framework? 

2. What standards will be required to ensure that Smart Lighting solutions are            
‘Smart’, and offer the widest range of interoperability between providers? 

3. Should there be differentiation within the Framework between different lighting          
types and/or technologies, e.g. internal and external lighting? 

4. Are there any other aspects of Smart Lighting solutions we should be            
considering? 

Service 3 - Smart Meters, Sensoring and Equipment 
1. Do you agree that Smart Meters, Sensoring and Equipment solutions should           

form part of any Smart Energy Cities Framework? 
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2. What standards will be required to ensure that the meters and sensors            
installed in the public sector estate are ‘Smart’, open source and offer the             
widest range of interoperability between providers? 

3. Have you previously provided smart metering, sensoring and equipment for          
buildings or estates? Can you provide details on what types you have            
supplied for your different customers? 

4. Are there any other aspects of Smart Meters, Sensoring and Equipment           
solutions we should be considering? 

Service 4 - Demand Side Response 
1. Do you agree that Demand Side Response solutions should form part of any             

Smart Energy Cities Framework? 

2. Do you have recommendations on how a DSR procurement solution should           
be implemented to ensure that it captures this fast-moving market? 

3. Are there any other aspects of Demand Response solutions we should be            
considering? 

Service 5 – Building Energy Management Systems 
1. Do you agree that Building Energy Management Systems solutions should          

form part of any Smart Energy Cities Framework? 

2. What aspects of a BEMS should be considered as part of a Smart Energy              
solution? Does this take it outside the standard scope of a Building            
Management System? 

Service 6 - Heating & Cooling 
1. Do you agree that Heating and Cooling solutions should form part of any             

Smart Energy Cities Framework? 

2. What form should a Smart Heating & Cooling system take? 

3. Would the uptake of this solution require infrastructure changes or is this            
primarily a control system upgrade? 

4. What other aspects of Heating and Cooling solutions we should be           
considering? 

Service 7 - Central Control Systems/Integrator 
1. Do you think that a successful implementation of a Smart Energy City requires             

a separate control system or Integrator to manage each of the different Smart             
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solutions, or should each solution be managed as distributed and          
stand-alone? Can you explain your reasoning? 

2. Is this Integrator solution (or could it be) fulfilled by one of the other solutions               
listed in this RFI, for example a Building Energy Management System or a             
Demand Side Response system? 

3. Are there any other aspects of a Central Control System we should be             
considering? 

Service 8 - Other Utilities - Gas, Water & Fuels 
1. Do you believe the successful implementation of a Smart Energy City requires            

consideration of other fuels than electricity, such as natural gas, water and            
combustible fuels? 

2. How do you envisage the interaction of each of these utilities with the other              
utilities listed? Are they intrinsically linked or could/should they be considered           
separately? 

3. What gas specific solutions do you propose for a Smart Energy City? 

4. What water specific solutions do you propose for a Smart Energy City? 

5. What combustible fuel specific solutions do you propose for a Smart Energy            
City? 

6. Are there any other aspects of these utilities we should be considering? 
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